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Vision
The Company’s Management strives to achieve the top slot in any
business field that they enter and having achieved that, their

endeavour is to retain that status without overstepping the bounds

of fair play and the norms of business ethics.

Mission

Through self discipline be an example to their fellow beings that
great heights are achievable in all fields without trampling the
rights of others and also ensuring that those associated with the
venture, be it the shareholders, the worKers from the top to the
bottom are satisfied with the returns that accrue to them. A seemingly
difficult, if not an impossible task but it is the chosen path on which
the Company is headed and thus far it has successfully followed it.

Providing maximum employment opportunities and contributing

their mite to the Country’s economy,.
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TOWELLERS LIMITED
Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Notice is hereby given that the 50" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Towellers Limited
(the company) will be held at registered Office Towellers House WSA, 30-31, Block-1 Federal B Area
Karachi on Thursday October 26 2023 at 3:30 p.m to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2.

4.

To confirm the minutes of the 49™ Annual General Meeting held on October 26, 2022,

To receive consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30™ 2023 together with Chairman Review. Directors and Auditors, reports thereon.

To approve the payment of final cash dividend for the year ended June 30™ 2023 @ 100% i.e.
PKR 10/- per share. This is in addition to Interim cash dividend already paid at PKR 3/- per share
i.e, 30%.

To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024, and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5

To approve the circulation of the annual financial statements to the members through QR enabled
code and weblink by passing an ordinary resolution proposed in the statement of material facts

To transit any other business with the permission of the Chair.
A statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act. 2017 pertaining to the Special Business
is being sent to the members with this notice.

By order of the Board

M. Farhan Adil
Company Secretary

Karachi: September 27" 2023,
NOTES:

The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 19" 2023 to October
26" 2023 (Both days inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period,
Transfer received in order at M/s. THK Associates (Private) Limited. 32-C, Jami Commercial
Street 2, D.H.A. Phase-VII, Karachi. by close of business on October 18, 2023, will be treated in
time for the entitlement and to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her
proxy to attend the meeting and vote instead of him/her .Proxies in order to be etffective must be
reccived by the Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting. In Case of Corporate entity,
the Board Resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted alongwith
Proxy Form to the Company. The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu is attached in the Annual
Report and download from the Company’s Website i.e, www.towellers.com

CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in circular Nol,
dated January 26, 2000 issued by the SECP.

Shareholders interested in attending the AGM virtually are registered to ensure their registration
by sending their particulars at the designated email www.farhan(e@towellers.com with the subject
“Registration for TOWL AGM” mentioning their name, folio number, email address. The Log-in
credentials and Zoom link to participate in the AGM would be provided to the registered
shareholders via response email at least 48 hours before the time of AGM. Shareholders can also
provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email address:
farhan(@towellers.com.

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to section 143-145 of the Companies Act, 2017
and Companies (Postal Ballot) regulations, 2018 amended through notification dated December 5,
2022 issued by the (SECP), wherein, SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide the
right to vote through the electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all
businesses classified as special business. Members of Towellers Limited will be allowed to
exercise their right to vote through electronic voting facility or voting by post for special business
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in its 50" Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, October 26, 2023 at 3.30 p.m. in
accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid
Regulations. For the convenience of the sharcholders, the Ballot paper is annexed to this notice
and the same is also available on the Company’s website at www.towellers.com.

6 Details of e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company
who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers and e-mail addresses available in the register of
members of the company by the close of business on October 18, 2023. The web address and login
details will be communicated to members via email, security code will be communicated to
members through SMS from the web portal of M/s THK Associates (Pvt) limited (being the e-
voting service provider). E-Voting lines will start on October 21, 2023 and shall close on October
25, 2023, members can cast their votes at any time during this period.

7 The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with a copy of the (CNIC)
should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered address,
W.S.A. 30,31 Block no. 1 Federal B Area Karachi- 75950 or email at www.larhan(ctowellers.com
by October 25, 2023, The signature on the ballot paper shall match the signature on CNIC.

8 As per section 72 of the Companies Act 2017, the company is required to replace its physical
shares with the book entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the Commencement of this Act. The
shareholders having physical sharcholding are encouraged to open account with the Central
Depositary Company (CDC) to place their physical share into scrip less form.

9 Shareholders, who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the Company/Share
Register, are once again requested to send their CNIC at the earliest directly to Company’s Share
Registrar, M/s THK Associates Pvt Limited, Corporate Entitiecs also requested to provide their
NTN.

10 In accordance with the provisions of section 242 ot the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies
(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017 every listed company is required to ensure that the
cash dividends to its shareholders shall be paid through electronic mode only directly into their
bank accounts designated by the entitled shareholders instead of issuing physical dividend
warrants. Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the details of their Bank mandate to the
Company Share Registrar. Those share holders who hold shares with participants/CDC are
advised to provide the same to their concerned participant/CDC, please note that as per section
243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed Companies are entitled to withhold payment of
dividend, if necessary information is not provided by the shareholders, for the convenience E-
Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company’s website. Members who, by any reasons, could
not claim their dividends are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s THK Associates Pvt Ltd
to collect/inquire about their unclaimed/unpaid dividends. Members are requested to submit a
declaration (CZ-50) to the Share Registrar, before the first day of book closure.

11 Pursuant the provisions of Finance Act, 2023 effective July 01, 2023 the rate of deduction of
income tax from dividend payment under section 150 of the income tax ordinance, 2001 are as
follows (i) for active tax payer :15% (ii) for non-active tax payer : 30%.

12 Pursuant to the provisions of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 the companies are
permitted to circulate their Annual Audited Financial statements alongwith Notice of AGM, to its
shareholders by e-mail, Physical copy of the Annual Report will be provided to the members on
demand. The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 is also available on
the Company’s Website www.towellers.com.

13 Members are requested to have their updated e-mail and cell number incorporated in their physical
folio with Share registrar of the Company and with their Participant or Broker/CDC Investor
Account Services for shares held in electronic form.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its SRO 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 has
allowed companies to circulate the Annual Audited Financial together with reports thereon to its members
through QR-cnabled code and weblink. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought and if thought fit to
pass the following resolution as a special resolution:

RESOLVED THAT the Company may transmit the Annual Audited Financial Statements to its
members through QR-enabled code and weblink address to view and download the Annual Audited
Financial Statements instead of transmitting in CD form or in hard copies, as allowed by the Securities
and exchange Commission of Pakistan.

None of the Directors have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the aforesaid special business.

&
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CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW REPORT

| am pleased to present this Review Report to the shareholders of the Company pertaining to
the overall performance of the Board of Directors and their effectiveness in guiding the
Company in optimizing its profitability and leading the Company to sustain the performance
and profitability of the company in these difficult times.

The Board performed in professional manner for setting targets of its growth, exploring new
markets & finding new customers and building confidence of their existing customers by

" maintaining high quality of its products. The Chief Executive provides reports and updates to
the Board on regular basis on areas such as business plans, operating performance, cashflows,
relevant financial information and risk management.

Although.the Company was not able to sustain export shipments as much as it achieved during
the year 2022, the Company did reasonably well if the comparison is made with the year 2021.
The year 2022 was a good year as far as the export figures were concerned and Pakistan
managed the Covid threat well and the Country did well in textile exports as compared to other

~ countries of the region. Hence, considering year 2022 as extraordinary year for textile exports
and being a high base year, true comparison should be made with the year 2021.

The year 2023 was a difficult year for the world economy in general and for Pakistan in
particular. PKR devaluation, record inflation and high interest rates prevailed during the year,
while strict import restrictions were imposed. Per Capita income, GDP growth and exports
shrunk, while cotton produce remained low. Despite of all such challenges, Alhamdulillah, by
the Grace of Almighty Allah, we have managed to double our profitability this year also. All

" praises go with the board of directors for fantastically managing the surplus working capital and
funds and implementing a long term vision to keep the Company ungeared. Such vision of not
borrowing funds from banks at market rate is paving its way in maintaining a healthy profit
margin.

| am also pleased that the Board has decided to announce a healthy dividend for second
consecutive year. Members truly deserve the same for standing with the management and
supporting the Company through all these years for which | am thankful to them. | wish and

~ hope for the consistent growth and profitability of the company which would be mutually
beneficial for all stakeholders.

In the end, | would like to congratulate once again to all the Board Members for their
remarkable performance and thank them for their commitment and contributions. | would also
like to thank shareholders for their trust on the Board of Directors.

Karachi: September 27t 2023
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, its our pleasure to place before you the Audited Financial
Statements of your Company for the year ended June 30th, 2023. These Financial Statement have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standards and
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 under section 227.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The financial year 2022-23 has been extremely challenging year for Pakistan’s economy.
Cumulative fiscal and trade deficits impacted current account balance which put extra burden to
already weakened Pak Rupee resulting in rapid devaluation. This coupled with global increase in
prices of international commodities and supply disruptions caused by the massive floods in the
country resulted in unprecedented sky rocketing inflation. CPI inflation averaged @ 29.4% during
the year. High inflation rate forced the government to increase the policy rate to the highest level
of 22% during recent times. Such high interest rates have added to grievances of the already
troubled industrial sector of the country.

In backdrop of the above, economic indicators of the country are reflecting the picture of

troubled and difficult business atmosphere. GDP growth has shrunken to 0.29% from almost 6%
last year. Per Capita Income has reduced to USS 1,568 from 1,765. Industrial growth and large

scale manufacturing growth are negative (- 2.94 & - 8.11 respectively). Cotton production
declined by 41% and textiles growth declined by 16.03% (Textile exports USS 16.5 B vs USS 19.3

B last year).

After the recessionary trend that prevailed a year after covid, the global demand and economies
are at the path of recovery and we have observed some stability in overall retail consumption.
Hence, the beginning of the year 2023-24 has been reasonable in terms of export orders and we
hope that it gets better during upcoming months.

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

Although export shipments declined during the year but massive devaluation in Pak Rupee
helped in sustaining overall revenue levels. The Company has posted a turnover of Rs. 11.1 B as
compared to Rs. 10.24 B last year, managing a growth of 8.3 %.

Net profit after tax of Rs. 2.41 Billion was recorded (2022: Rs.1.06 Billion) whereas the earning
per share remained at 141.83 per share (2022: 62.53 per share) despite the additional provision
of Super Tax levied during the year. This encouraging profit also include the gains of better

management of liquid funds.

Company’s directors, management team, staff and workers have worked hard with utmost
dedication to obtain orders, produce and ship on time to earn this performance. Market driven
currency exchange rates, which prevailed during the year, also helped the Company to increase
its price competitiveness. Your Company is determined to keep achieving better growth,

performance and profitability with the help and support of its team and shareholders.

Following is the summarized P&L for a quick review:

@
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Rupees in Thousands

30-JUN-2023 30-JUN-2022
Sales (Net) 11,086,916 10,238,086
Gross Profit 3,142,600 2,086,932
Distribution Cost 298,705 512,916
Administrative Expenses 365,248 333,125
Other Operating Expenses 183,558 75,174
Other Income 338,877 42,526
Finance Cost 53,848 23,250
Profit Before Taxation 2,580,119 1,184,994
Profit After Taxation 2,388,338 1,063,048
Earning Per Share 140.49 62.53

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PLANS

Following the up-gradation of dyeing and processing functions, the Company is continuing to
invest in modernization of its manufacturing facilities. During the year also machines like heat
setting machine and boiler were added to its processing department. The Company has the
plan to continue making such investments which helps in bringing efficiency and quality of the

manufacturing processes resulting in increase of the wealth of its shareholders.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the section 227 (2) (f) of the

Companies Act, 2017 as at June 30, 2023 is annexed to this report.
DIRECTOR TRAINING

The Company takes keen interest in the professional development of its Board Members.
Directors are kept updated about relevant laws and current matters regarding Corporate
Governance and other regulatory changes. Five directors of the company have completed
certification from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) in compliance with the CCG

rules.
DIVIDEND

During the year, The Company disbursed an interim dividend of 30% while anticipating a good
profitable result for the year. Now, the Board of Directors are pleased to propose 100% final
dividend subject to the members’ approval at the Annual General Meeting. The Directors and
staff of the Company are working hard to continue such performance in the future years while
maintaining a healthy growth rate. We thank our shareholders for their support and prayers for

the growth and prosperity of the Company.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
The basic and Diluted earnings per share After tax is Rs. 140.49(2022-Rs. 62.53)

CHAIRPERSON'’S REVIEW

The Chairperson’s review is part of this annual report and directors of Company fully endorse

contents therein.
AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Mushtag and Co. Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment. The board of Directors on recommendation of Audit Committee proposes
the re-appointment of Mushtaq and Co. Chartered Accountants for the year ending June 30,
2024.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT o

Your directors would like to express their gratitude to all the stakeholders and appreciate them
for their encouragement and support. We also appreciate staff and workers of the Company for
their commitment, dedication and hard work put by them, and our shareholders, who have

always shown their confidence and faith in the Company.

ptember 27, 2023 /&Q)’\QM
Chief Executive Officer Director
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The present Board of Directors comprises a well balanced mix of executive, non-executive and
independent Directors. It has eight Directors the position of Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer are held by separate individuals. Mahjabeen Obaid hold the position of Chairperson of
the Board while Mehreen Obaid Agha is CEO/MD of the Company.

TOTAL NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

a. Male 4
b. Female 4

COMPOSITIONS

a. Independent Directors 2
b. Non-Executive Directors 5
Executive Directors 1

During the year Four (4) meetings of the Board were held in which the attendance by each
Directors is as follows.

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended

Mehreen Obaid Agha 3
Mahjabeen Obaid
Sana Bilal

Hadeel Obaid
Zeeshan K. Sattar
Muhammad Sarfraz
Niaz Muhammad

NMNWWWwWN

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has formed two sub committees namely Audit and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Audit committee consist of three members including Chairman of the
Committee. The Committee regularly meets as per requirement of the Code. The Committee
assists the Board in reviewing internal audit system. The committees comprising of members
given belows.

Audit Committee

Muhammad Sarfraz Chairman
Hadeel Obaid Member
Sana Bilal Member

During the year Four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held in which the attendance by each
Director is as follows.
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Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended
Sana Bilal 4
Hadeel Obaid 3
Muhammad Sarfraz 2

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a HR and remuneration Committee in compliance with the code of
Corporate Governance. The HR and remuneration Committee is per forming its duties in line with

its terms of reference as determined by the Board.
Two meeting was held during the financial year ended June 30, 2023

HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Niaz Muhammad Chairman
Zeeshan K. Sattar Member
Valy Tarig Rangoonwala Member

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best

practices of corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility in respect of the
corporate and financial reporting framework and thus states that:

e The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements except as disclosed and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

s |nternational Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements.

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

e There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in the regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

e The highlights of operating and financial data for the last six years are annexed in the
Annual Report 2023.
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Independent Auditors” Report
To The Members of Towellers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Towellers Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of
the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

2
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Key Audit Matfters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in audit

1 Stock in trade

Refer to note no. 8 to the audited
financial statements; the company has
stock in trade aggregating Rs.1624.943
million comprising raw materials, work
in process and finished goods. We
identified this area as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area
include:

Observation of physical inventory count
procedures and compared on a sample basis,
physical count with valuation sheets;

Compared on a sample basis specific purchases
and directly attributable cost with underlying
supporting documents;

Compared the NRV, on a sample basis, to the cost
of finished goods to assess whether any
adjustments are required to value stock in
accordance with applicable accounting and
reporting standards; and

We also considered the adequacy of the related
disclosures and assessed these are in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting standards
and the Companies Act, 2017.
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2 | Defined Benefit

(Gratuity)

Obligations

Refer to note no. 18 to the audited
financial statements.

The Company operates an unfunded
gratuity plan, giving rise to net liability
of Rs.176.081 million, which is
significant in the context of the overall
balance sheet of the Company.
The valuation of liability
judgment and technical expertise in
choosing appropriate assumptions.
Changes in a number of the key
assumptions, including:

— salary increase and inflation;

— discount rate; and

— mortality.

requires

All can have a material impact on the
calculation of the liability. The
Company uses external actuaries to
assist in assessing these assumptions
and calculations of these liabilities.

The use of these actuaries increases the
risk of error as data is passed to third
parties for analysis and calculation
purposes.

We evaluated the qualification of actuary and
assessed, whether the assumptions wused in
valuation report for calculating the gratuity plan
liabilities, including salary increases, inflation,
mortality rate and discount rate assumptions, were
reasonable and consistent with based on national
and industry data. We were satisfied that the rates
used fell within acceptable ranges.

We understood and tested key controls over the
completeness and accuracy of data extracted and
supplied to the Company’s actuary

We also performed sample testing to agree
underlying employee data, supporting human
resources documentation and assessed the
appropriateness of the closing liability based on
known movements and assumptions. No issues
were identified to raise concerns over the valuation
of the gratuity liability.

We also read and assessed the disclosures made in
the financial statements, including disclosures of
the assumptions, and found them to be
appropriate.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information
obtained prior to the date of auditor’s report, and information expected to be made available to us
after the date of auditor’s report; but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting” and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

as
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
o would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7
of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Zahid
Hussain Zahid, FCA.

Karachi.
Dated: September 27, 2023
UDIN: AR202310043361FAgjhd
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulation, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Towellers
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023.

AQ & CO
Karachi: tered Accountants
Date: September 27, 2023 ered W¥hgagement Partner:
DIN: CR2023100430M6Tb1gK2 Zahid Hussain Zahid

FCA




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019.

NAME OF COMPANY TOWELLERS LIMITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30" 2023

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are cight as per the following:
Male 4
Female 4
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
CATEGORY NAMES
Independent Director Muhammad Sarfraz
Niaz Muhammad
Non-Executive Directors Mahjabeen Obaid
Zeeshan K. Sattar
Valy Tariq Rangoonwala
Hadeel Obaid
Sana Bilal
Executive Directors Mehreen Obaid Agha

Independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and
execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations. They fulfill the necessary
requirements as per applicable laws and regulations. therefor fraction (2.67) has not been rounded up.

1.

10.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company alongwith its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2017 and these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in her absence, by a director
clected by the Board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Six out of Eight directors complied with the requirements of Directors Training Program. The
reaming Dircctor are expected to get training in future.

The Board has approved appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit, including their remuncration and terms and conditions of employment

and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:




TOWELLERS LIMITED

Audit Committee

Muhammad Sarfraz Chairman
Hadeel Obaid Member
Sana Bilal Member

HR and Remuneration Committee

Niaz Muhammad Chairman
Zeeshan K. Sattar Member
Valy Tarig Rangoonwala Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed., documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (Quarterly/half wyearly/yearly) of the commiltees were as per
following:

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the vear.
HR and Remunecration two meeting was held during the vear.
Committee

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer. chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company sccretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed TFAC guidelines in this
regard;

We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3.6.7,8.27.32,33, and
36 are below (if applicable).

Non-Mandatory Requirement Explanation Reg.No.

Requirement to attain certification:
Six Directors meeting the Currently, 6 out of 8 directors have (19)
requirement of DTP . meet the requirement of DTP.

The remaining one directors training is

In process.

Responsibilities of the Board and its Members:

The Board is responsible for adoption of Non-mandatory provisions of the 10(1)
Corporate governance practices by the Regulations are partially complied. The
Company. Company is deliberating on full Compliance

with all the provisions of the Regulations.

zl\’lahjabeen Obaid
Chairperson

Dated: September 27" 2023




TOWELLERS LIMITED

SIX YEARS AT GLANCE
FROM 2018 TO 2023
RUPEES IN THOUSANDS
PARTICULARS {2023 2022 2021 | 2020 { 2019 | 2018 !
Turn over-Net 11,086,916 + 10,238,086 1 5,220,747 1 3,772,254+ 3,848,285 1 2,605,809
Cost of sales 7,944,316 8,151,154 | 4,109,212} 3,071,384 } 2,985,218} 2,217,211
Gross profit / (loss) 3,142,600 2,086,932 | 1,111,536 700,870 863,067 388,598
Profit/(loss) from operration 2,633,967 1,208,243 619,652 321,304 457,560 284,807
Finance cost 53,848 23,250 5,444 6,388 6,482 5,201
Profir/(loss) before taxation 2,580,119 1,184,994 614,208 314,915 451,077 279,606
Profit / (loss) after taxation 2,388,338 1,063,048 556,456 275,894 402,684 253,606
Dividend 221,000 34,000 = - -
iFINANCIAL DATA ;
Fixed assets-w.d.v 3,250,949 3,142,611 | 1,810,526 ; 1,663,761 } 1,231,256 { 1,264,375
Long term loans 19,250 20,487 19,501 16,861 12,851 10,643
Long term deposits 44,271 35,321 29,349 16,875 19,755 19,755
Current assets 6,667,455 4,632,048 1 2,437,648 1 1,852,202 1,475871 1 1,048,309
Total 9,981,926 7,830,468 4,297,024 3549699 2,739,733 2,343,082
{EQUITY & LIABILITIES E
Equity 7,560,745 5391114 { 3,277,720 2,714,251} 2,053,845 1,631,240
Non current liabilities 185,190 186,911 174,794 163,376 97,902 111,449
Current liabilities 2,235,991 2,252,443 844,511 672,072 587,986 600,393
Total 9,981,926 7,830,468 1 4,297,024 ; 3,549,699 ; 2,739,733 ; 2,343,082
{KEY RATIOS% ;
Gross margine’o 28.35 20.38 21.29 18.58 22.43 14.91 E
Net profit (loss)% 21.54 10.38 10.66 7.31 10.46 9.73
Quick acid ratio% 1.80 1.08 0.89 1.32 1.20 0.62
EBIT margine% 22.79 11.35 11.66 8.52 11.89 10.93
Current ratio% 2.98 2.06 2.89 276 2.51 1.75
Earning/(loss) per share Rs 140.49 62.53 32.73 16.23 23.69 14.92
Dividend payout ratio 9.25 3.20 - - = -
Debt equity ratio% 0.32 0.45 | 0.31 0.31 0.33 0.44




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 3,250,949,018 | 3,142,611,158 |
Long term loans and advances 5 19,250,419 || 20,486,758
Long term deposits 6 44,271,116 || 35,321,400
3,314,470,553 3,198,419.316
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 7 64,105,747 | 77,853,375
Stock in trade 8 1,624,943,040 1,490,829,863
Trade debts 9 2,246,392,773 1,546,987,008
Loans and advances 10 115,391,739 61,394,555
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 11 30,235,574 23,495,653
Other receivables 12 150,613,511 64,796,301 |
Income tax and sales tax refundable 13 653,109,675 474,606,754
Short term investment 14 1,352,260,073 228,413,351 |
Cash and bank balances 15 430,403,190 663,671,503 |
6,667,455,322 4,632,048,363
9,981,925,875 7,830,467,679
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
25,000,000 (June 30, 2022: 25,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 250,000,000 250,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 16 170,000,000 170,000,000
Reserves 5,255,653,945 3,030,788,603
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 17 2,135,091,527 2,190,325,270
7,560,745,472 5,391,113,873
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Staff retirement benefits 18 176,081,034 176,663,441
Long term loan 19 9,108,513 10,247,077
185,189,547 186,910,518
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 20 2,233,290,570 | 1,454,058,992
Unclaimed dividend 21 1,459,345 585,945
Accrued markup 22 102,377 | 5,933,851
Current portion long lerm loan 19 1,138,564 853,923
Short term borrowings 23 - 791,010,577 |
2,235,990,856 2,252,443,288
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24 - -
9,981,925,875 7,830,467,679

The annexed notes forn an integral part of these financial statenenls.

Mehreen Obaid Agha
Chief Executive

Sana Bilal

Director

Karachi,
September 27, 2023

Adnan Moosaji
Chief Financial Officer

@




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 25 11,086,916,406 10,238,086,187
Cost of sales 26 (7,944,316,369) (8,151,154,374)
Gross profit 3,142,600,037 2,086,931,813
Distribution cost 27 (298,704,654) (512,915,891)
Administrative expenses 28 (365,248,099) (333,124,798)
Other operating expenses 29 (183,557,860) (75,173,946)
Other income 30 338,877,306 42,526,295

(508,633,307) (878,688,340)
Profit from operations 2,633,966,730 1,208,243,473
Finance cost 31 (53,847,932) (23,249,556)
Profit before taxation 2,580,118,798 1,184,993,917
Provision for taxation 32 (191,781,229) (121,945,732)
Profit for the year 2,388,337,569 1,063,048,185
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 140.49 62.53

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

ehreen Obaid Agha
Chief Executive

Karachi,
September 27, 2023

Director

Chief Financial Officer




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 2,388,337,569 1,063,048,185
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
Gain on remeasurement of staff retirement benefits 181 2,294,030 17,110,214
Surplus on revaluation of land, building & plant and machinery - 1,067,235,625
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,390,631,599 2,147,394,024
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Reserves
Issued, - i
Particulars subscribed and ;::l::l | Revenue Reserve R::_I:::n Total
L e
Pald up capital | Share Unappropriated Sels Tl
| premium profit
Balance as at June 30, 2021 170,000,000 63,000,000 1,865,578,690 1,928,578,69() 1,179,141,159 3,277,719,849
Profit for the year - E 1,063,048,185 1,063,048,185 E 1,063,048,185
Other comprehensive income for the vear - = 17,110,214 17,110,214 1,067,235,625 1,0184,345,839
Interim dividend of PKR 2.00 per share for the half year
h \ -
ended Dec 31, 2021 (34,000,000) (34,000,000) (34,000,000)
Transierred from surplus on revaluation of - - 56,051,514 56,051,514 (56,051,514)
property, plant & equipment
Balance as at June 30, 2022 170,000,000 63,000,000  2,967,788,603  3,030,788,603  2,190,325270  5,391,113,873
Profit for the year 2,388,337,569 2,388,337,569 = 2,388,337,569
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 2,294,030 2,294,030 - 2,294,030
Annual dividend of PKR 10.00 per share for the year ’ -
ended June 30, 2022 {170,000,000) (170,000,000) = (170,000,000)
Interim dividend of 'KR 3.00 per share for the period 51,000,000 1,000,000 51,600,000
ended March 31, 2023 LI ORI ' CHIRES
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of - - 55,233,743 55,233,743 (55,233,743) -
property, plant & equipment
Balance as at June 30, 2023 170,000,000 63,000,000 5,192,653,945 5,255,653,945 2,135,091,527 7,560,745,472
Thegmexed notes form an imtegrpl part of these financial statements. X
ehreen Obaid Agha ‘/A‘g;a Bilal
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi,
September 27, 2023




TOWELLERS LIMITED

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 2,580,118,798 1.184,993,917
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 134,726,819 116,430,012
Amortization 303,992 337,769
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 43,200,972 46,196,590
Finance cost 53,847,932 23,249,556
Workers' profit participation fund 135,795,726 62,368,101
(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8,749,544) (5.075,108)
359,125,897 243,506,920

Profit before working capital changes 2,939,244, 695 1,428,500,837
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 13,747,628 (26,918,412)
Stock in trade (134,113,177) (389,096,699)
Trade debts (699,405,765) (1,094,186,333)
Loans and advances (53,997,184) (8,504,460) |
Trade deposits and short term prepayvments (6,739,921) (6,757,288)
Other receivables (85,817,210) 122,229,040 |

(966,325,629) (1,403,234,152)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 705,803,953 579,506,885
Cash generated from operations 2,678,723,019 604,773,570
Finance cost paid (59,679,405) (17,315,706) |
Taxes paid (370,284,149) (321,424,236)
Workers' profit participation fund paid (62,368,101) (32,326,744)
Long term loan to employees 1,236,340 (985,262) |
Long term deposits (8,949.,716) (5,972,240)
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid (41,489,349) (27,216,645)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,137,188,638 199,532,737
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9,288,000 12,150,000
Short term investment (1,123,846,722) (228,413,351)
Fixed capital expenditure (243,907,129) (388,692,620)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (1,358,465,851) (604,955,970)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term borrowings (853,923) 11,101,000 {
Short term borrowings (791,010,577) 791,010,577 |
Dividend paid (220,126,600) (33,414,055)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (1,011,991,100) 768,697,522
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (233,268,313) 363,274,288
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 663,671,503 300,397,215
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 430,403,190 663,671,503

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

ehreen Obaid Agha Sana Bilal
Chief Executive Director
Karachi,

September 27, 2023

Adnan Moosaji

Chief Financial Officer

@®




TOWELLERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a Private Limited Company on 31st May 1973 (Under Companies Act 1913) and subsequently
converted into Public Limited Company on 22nd June 1994 under the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984,(Now Companies Act, 2017) and is
quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The main business (!FCnmpany is manufacturing and export of textile made ups, garments and towels.
Following are the geographical locations and addresses of all business units of the Company:

Head office: WSA - 30 & 31, Block - 1, Federal "B" Area Karachi.

Manufacturing units of the Company:

a) WSA - 30 Block - 1, Federal "B" Area Karachi.
b) Plot No.14,15/1,15/2,15/A,16/2,/17/1,17/2,17/3, Sector 12-D North Karachi Industrial Area Karachi.
4] Plot No.9 & 10 Sector 12-C North Karachi Industrial Area Karachi.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017. Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the TFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

22 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting
policy notes.

23 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Company's functional currency. All financial information presented

in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the nearesl rupee.

24 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimales. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

25  STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
251 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

company:
Effective date
(annual reporting periods
beginning on or after)

IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) 1-Jan-23

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changing in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendments) 1-Jan-23

1A512  Income Taxes (Amendments) 1-Jan-23

IFRS4  Insurance Contracts (Amendments) 1-Jan-23

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 1-Jan-23

IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) 1-Jan-24

252 The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have any material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

25.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the
following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP} as at June 30, 2023

IFRS1  First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFR517  Insurance Contracts
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement




TOWELLERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

31

32

33

34

3.5

3.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss, except land which is stated at revalued amount less any
identified impairment loss (if any), while building, plant and machinery are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss.

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment is charged to income applying the reducing balance method so as to write off the
depreciable amount of an asset over its estimated useful life. Depreciation is being charged at the rates given in note to property plant &

equipment. Leasehold land is amortized over the term of lease, if material.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an assets become available for use, while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are continually reviewed by the company and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant. The
company's estimate of the residual value of its property, plant and equipment as at June 30, 2023 has not required any adjustment, as its impact is
considered insignificant,

The company continually assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and
the resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account for the vear. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets’ fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the

assets' revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.
The profit or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset is recognized as an income or expense. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents expenditure incurred on fixed assets in the course of
construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use.

Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortization is provided on straight line method. A full month's amortization is cha]'ged in the month of addition, and no amortization is
charged in the month of de-recognition.

Rate of amortization, which is disclosed in the relevant note, Is designed to write-off the cost over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset.

The carrying valuee of the intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
generating units are wiitten down to their recoverable amount.

Investments

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial position date ar to be sold to raise operating capital,
are included in current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the appropriate classification of its

investments at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.
Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables

These are stated at cost. Provision is made for the amounts considered doubtful. Amounts considered irrecoverable are written off to profit and
loss account.

Stores, spares and loose tools
These are stated at average cost and goods-in-transit are stated at actual cost.

Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares based on management estimate.

@D
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3n
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3.13

314

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is determined as
follows;

Raw material At weighted average cost or replacement cost which ever is lower

Work in progress At average manufacturing cost

Finished goods At average manufacturing cost or net realisable value which ever is lower

Waste Net realizable value

Raw material in transit is stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon upto the balance sheet date.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods, consist of direct material and proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs of completion and selling expenses.

Trade debts

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be received for goods and services less an estimate
made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit planj for all its permanent employees who have completed minimum
qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Liability is adjusted annually to cover the obligation and the adjustment is
charged to profit or loss, The determination of the Company's obligation under the scheme requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes,
the principal ones being in respect of increases in remuneration, expected average remaining working lives of employees and discount rate used
to derive present value of defined benefit obligation,

There is risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the entity has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on
the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses and unrecognized past service cost.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in comprehensive income for the period in which these arise.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and
services received.

Taxation
Current year

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income, The
charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Dividend

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

a) According to the core principles of TFR5-15, the company recognizes the revenue from sale when the company salisfies a performance
obligation (at a point of time) by transferring promised goods to customers being when the goods are dispatched to customers.
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes, duties,
commission, sales returns and discounts.

b} Return on bank balances is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of
return,

] Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognized when right to receive such dividend and bonus shares is established.
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3.15
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3.18

3.20

3.22

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a quallfying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset up to the date of its” commencing.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses on translation are recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into rupees at
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks, cash in hand and short term deposits. For the purposes of cash flow statement cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of temporary overdrawn bank balances.

Impairment

Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets. The Company applies the
simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets. The Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If
such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense in the profit or loss, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use.
Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unils). An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extenl that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and de-
recognized when the company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognizing of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit
and loss account for the year. All financial assets and labilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to
setoff the recognized amount and the company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arms’ length price using the method preseribed under the Companies Act,
2017,

Nature of the related party relationship as well as information about the transactions and outstanding balances are disclosed in the relevant note
to the financial statements.

Capital Management

The company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The board of directors monitors the return on capital and level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders. The company
seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position. There were no changes in the company's approach to capital management during the year. Further, the
company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

A Fated Writh Mode of
TParticulars Particulars of buyer Cost ccum‘u 1 i e Sale proceeds Gain/(Loss) .‘o L5
depreciation down value disposal
Plant & Machinery
KIER Machie Zakir 1,200,000 1,148,779 51,221 1,600,000 1,548,779  Negotiation
Terey Looms Al-Fareed Towel 5,304,505 5,281,933 22972 3,200,000 3177028 MNegotiation
6,504,905 6,430,712 T1.195 4,800,000 4,725,807
Motor Vehicle
Toyota Corolla AQG-516 EFU Insurance 955,000 828,513 126,487 1,200,000 1,073,513 Insurance claim
Super Star CD 70 KMNL-4286 EFU Tnsurance 54,000 23,370 30,624 40,000 9,376 Insurance claim
Super Star CD 70 KIL-5755 Muhammad Nadeem 46,504 37,348 9,152 18.000 8,548  MNegotiation
Honda Civic AZL-150 Muhammad Idrees Khan 2,415,240 2,154,105 261,155 2,750,000 24588 Bos Negobiabion
Suzuki Mehran ASL-791 EFU Insurance 412,000 375,155 36,865 450,000 443,135 Insurance claim
3,582,740 3,418,477 464,263 4,488,000 4,023,737
2023 10,387,645 9,548,189 538,456 5,258,000 8,749,544
2022 38,803,244 31,728,352 7,074,892 12,150,000 5,075,108

4.3 Had there been no revaluation the related figures of land, building and plant and machinery at June 30, 2023 would have been as follows:

Costason]uneH Accumulated H Book value
]

Cost as on ]\meH Accumulated

IH Book value

30, 2023 depreciation une 30, 2023 30, 2022 depreciation June 30, 2022
Leasehold land- restated 19,327,159 - 19,327,159 19,327,159 - 19,327,154
Building on leasehold land 510,558,250 463,131,714 47,436,536 441,250,765 461,568,839 20,318,074
Plant and machinery 1,588 539,852 853,365,076 735474775 1,379,378,052 779,673,661 5949, 704,391
2,118,725,261 1,316,486,790 B02,238,470 1,8349,955,976 1,241,242,500 598,713,476
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

4.4 Capital work in progress - at cost

Building - civil works TR, bbb, 62 103,099,420
Plant and machinery 66,416,670 144,777,662
145,083,362 247,877,082

The movement in Capital work in progress is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the vear 247 877,082 165,227,045
Additions during the year:
Building - civil works 44,874,757 65,596,013
Plant and machinery 9,749,300 84,874,155
54,624,557 150,470,168
Transter to operating fixed assets / expense
Plant and machinery 88,110,792 B7E20,131
Building - civil works 69,307,485 -
157 418,277 67 820,151
Balance at the end of the year 145,083,362 247 877,082

4.5 Intangible Assets

Transterred from CWIP-Saftware 3039918 3,377,687
Less: Amortization {303.992) (337,769)
2,735,926 3,039,918
Amaortization rate 0%, 104
2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
5 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loan to employees - secured
Executives 51 28,239,191 22 226,010
Other employees 5,695,278 3,440,512
33,934,469 25,666,522
Current portion of loans shown under current assets
Executives 10 (10,279,258) (3,295,412)
Other employees 10 (4,404,792) (1,884,352)
(14.684,050) (5,179,764)
19,250,419 20,486,758
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5.1

5.1.1
51.2

71

a1

8.2

8.3
84

%1

9.2

10

Movement in loans to executives

Balance at the beginning of the Year
Amount disbursed during the year

Amount recovered during the Year

Balance at the end of the Year

These are interest free loans recoverable in monthly installments . These loans are secured against employees' retirement benefit obligation- gratuity.

Maximum amount due from executives during the vear, calculated by reference to month-end balances, was Rs.25,507,900 (2022: Fs.20,226,100).

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits
STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
Spare parts and loose tools

Mo item of stares, spare and loose tools is pledged as security as at reporting date.
STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material
Work in process
Finished goods

81

8.2

22,226,010 18,779,106
21,678,765 16,154,350
43,904,775 34,933,456
(15,665,584) (12,707,446)
28,239,101 22,226,010
44,271,116 35,321,400
56,058,920 71,426,717

8.046,827 6,426,658
64,105,747 77,853,375

559,197,259
380,583,731
655,162,050

645,288,150
445,969,783
399,571,930

1.624,943,040

1,490,829,5863

Raw material stock cost PKR: Nil have been valued at PKR: Nil being the replacement cost of raw material. The amount charge to profit and loss in respect of raw

matetial written down to net realizable value is PKR: Nil.

Finished Goods stock cost PKR: Nil have been valued at PKR: Nil being the net realizable value of finished goods. The amount charge to profit and loss in respect

ol Finished Goods written down to net realizable value is PKR: Nil.

No item of stores, spare and loose tools is pledged as security as at reporting date.
The finished stocks includes waste stock and valued at NRV.

2023 2022
Naote Rupees Rupees
TRADE DEBTS
Secured against letter of credit
Foreign debts 9.1 G9649,353,552 191,427,306
Unsecured- considered good
Foreign debts 1,291,215,559 1,362,073,279
Domestic debts 6,382 377 8,113,026
Allowanece for ECL 9.2 (20,558,715) (14,626,603)
2,246,392,773 1,546,987,008
Foreign debls are secured against letter of credit.
Particulars of allowance for ECL on doubtful debts
Balance at beginning of the year 14,626,603 61,932
Allowance no longer required / recovered - *
Charge during the year 5,932,112 14,564,671
Balance at the end of the year 20,558,715 14,626,603
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loan to employees-Secured against gratuity
Executive - secured 5.1.1 10,279,258 3,295,412
Others - secured 5.1.1 4,404,792 1,884,352
14,684,050 5,179,764
Advances:
to suppliers 78,791,516 42,723,243
o services 21,916,173 13,491,550
100,707 689 56,214,792
115,391,739 61,394,555
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11 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits 491,740 68,000
Prepayments 30,709,945 24,393,767
Less: Impairment loss (966,114) (966,114)
30,235,574 23,495,653
12 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Export rebate 53,016,415 35,732,795
Drawback local taxes levies 47,597,096 29,063,506
150,613,511 B4, 796,301
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
13 INCOME TAX AND SALES TAX REFUNDABLE
Income Tax refundable
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,520,877 31,507,579
Advance income tax 26,527,212 25,409,229
Provision tor taxation (adjusted) (53,550,716) | (41,395,930)
Balance at the end of the year (11,502,627) 15,520,877
Sales tax refundable 664,612,302 459,085,876
653,109,675 474,606,753
14  SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss account in units of mutual funds 14.1 1,352,260,073 228,413,351
141 Name of fund No. of units Cost Fair value adjustment Fair value
Faysal islamic cash and sovereign fund 9,050,424 710,890,000 195,023,086 905,913,086
HBL islamic money market 4,411,659 374,120,000 72,226,987 446,346 987
2023 13,462,083 1,085,010,000 267,250,073 1,352,260,073
2022 12,430,949 227,000,000 1,413,352 228,413,351
15  CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 1,571,142 1,239,409
Cash at banks:
In current accounts 160,043,299 23,076,627
In saving accounts 15.1 268,788,749 639,355,467
428,832,048 662,432,094
430,403,190 663,671,503
15.1  Itcarries mark up at the rate of 4.50% to 19.50% (2022 : 4.5% to 12.50%) per annum.
16  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CATPITAL
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
9,372,247 9,372,247 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted for consideration paid in cash 93,722,470 93,722,470
1,012,753 1,012,753 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted as bonus shares 10,127,530 10,127,530
6,615,000 6,615,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted for consideration against plant & 66,150,000 66,150,000
machinery
17,000,000 17,000,000 170,000,000 170,000,000

16.1  The shareholders' are entitled to receive all distribulions to them including dividend and other entillements in the form of bonus and right shares as and when

declared by the Company. All shares carry "one vote” per share without restriction.
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2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
17 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance at the beginning of the Year 2,190,325,270 1,179,141,159
Surplus on revaluation of land, building & plant and machinery - 1,067,235,625

2,190,325,270 2,246,376,784

Transft':-r l‘O un‘appropTiated E»roﬁt in equity on account of incremental (55,233,743) (56,051,514)
depreciation charged in profit and loss account

Balance at the end of the Year 2,135,091,527 2,190,325,270

17.1  Revaluation of property plant and equipment was carried out on August 05, 2017 by M/s. Igbal A. Nanjee & company, an independent valuer which resulted a
surplus of Rs. 283,178,245/, Revaluation of property plant and equipment was carried out on August 26, 2019 by M/s. Igbal A. Nanjee & company, an independent
valuer which resulted a surplus of Rs. 429,041,341/ further revaluations were carried by the same valuer an property planl‘ and equipment on 13.09.2021 msull‘ing
a surplus of Rs. 1,067,235,625/-

18  STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Staff retirement benefits-Gratuity 18.1 176,081,034 176,663 441
176,081,034 176,663,441

181 Movement in the net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Opening net liability 176,663,441 174,793,710
Expense for the year 18.2 43,200,972 46,196,590
Remeasurement (Gain) recognized in other comprehensive income 183 (2,294,030} (17,110,214)
217,570,383 203,880,086
Benefits paid during the year {41,489,349) (27,216,645)
Closing net liability 176,081,034 176,663,441

18.2  Expense recognized in the profit and loss account

Current service cost 21,607 9a1 31,463,684
Interest cost 21,593,011 14,732,906
43,200,972 46,196,590
18.3  Expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Net actuarial (gain) recognized in the balance sheel (2,294,030) (17,110,214)
(2,294,030 (17,110,214)
2013 2022
Note Rupees Rupees

184  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation 176,663 441 174,793,710
Past service cost - -
Current service cost 21,607,961 31,463,684
Interest cost 21,593,011 14,732,506
Actuarial (gain) (2,294,030) (17,110,214)
Benefits paid (41,489,349) (27,216,645)
176,081,034 176,663,441
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18.11
18.12
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201

Gratuity expenses have been allocated as follows
Cost of goods manufactured

Administrative expenses

Historical information

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Reconciliation

Present value of defined benefit obligation

20,325,042 28,390,193
22,875,930 17,806,406
43,200,972 46,196,599

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
176,081,034 176,663,441 174,793,710 163,575,631 97,902,015
176,081,034 176,663,441
176,081,034 176,663,441

General description

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all of ils permanenl employees who atlain the minimum qualifying period. Annual charges is made using the

actuarial technique of Projected Unit Credit Method.

Principal actuarial assumption

Following are a few important actuarial assumption used in the valuation.

Discount rate

Avg. rate of increase in salary

Expected vear of services (years)

Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions

o
g

16.25%
10.00%
19

13.25%
10.00%
18

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions given above. The below information summarizes how the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period would have increased [ (decreased) as a result of change in respective assumptions by 100 basis point.

Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
Discount rate (8,921,000} 9,819,871
Expected rate of increase in future salaries 10,308,639 (9,485,225)
Expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2024 works out to Rs.52,537, 758/-.
The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 17 years.
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM LOAN
Bank Al Habib Limited 10,247,077 11,101,000
Less: current portion of long term loan (1,138,504) (853,923)
9,108,513 10,247,077

This facility has been availed Rs.10.25 million (2022: Rs.11.10 million) under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy which is repayable in ten years in
quarterly installments. The Loan bears the markup rate of 4% including the SBF financing rate of 2% and is secured against the Equitable Mortgage Charge on land

& building and hypothecation charge over the solar equipment.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Creditors

Accrued liabilities

Advances from customers

Waorkers' profit participation fund
Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund

Gas infrastructure development cess
Others

1,842,602,178

1,189,935,973

154,543,332 131,198,576

20.1 46,269,157 25,866,253
2 135,795,726 62,368,101
20.3 15,605,378 7,315,120
37,363,171 37,363,171

1,111,628 11,798

2,233,290,570 1,454,058,992

Advance received from customer is recognised as revenue when the performance obligation in accordance with the policy is satisfied. Revenue for an amount of
Rs. 21,986,315/- (2022: Rs. 25 420,842) has been recognised in current year in respect of advance from customers at the beginning of the period.
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4.1

2411

2412

24.2

25

251

‘Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the Year 62,368,101 32,326,744
Interest on fund utilized in company's business 6,003,583 1,697,154
68,461,984 34,023,898
Paid during the year (68,461,984) (34.023,898)
Allocation for the year 135,795,726 62,368,101
Balance at the end of the Year 135,795,726 62,368,101
Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund
Balance at the beginning of the Year 7,315,120 &
Allocation for the year 8,290,258 7315120
15,605,378 7,315,120
Paid during the year - -
Balance at the end of the Year 15,605,378 7.315,120
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Unclaimed dividend 21.1 1,454,345 55,945
This balance is the unclaimed amount from the interim and final dividend.
ACCRUED MARKUP
Markup on long lerm borrowing 102,377 -
Markup on short term borrowing T 5,933,851
102,377 5433.851
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured Under Mark up arrangements
Islamic export running finance 231 594,849,361
Export finance scheme 23.2 @ 196,161,216
- 791,010,577

During the year the Company availed Rs.1,709.616 million (2022: Rs. 594.8 million) Islamic Export Running Finance Facility under a scheme by SBP having a tenor
of six months. The Pre-shipment borrowing is settled upon exportfsale proceeds or Company's Own Sources after Sales/Shipment only and 'is priced at SBP rate +
0.75% (ie. ranging from 9.75% to 10.75%). The facility is secured against Registered Hypothecation Charge over Stocks & Receivables, Lien over Export
Documents, Registered Hypothecation charge over Plant & Machinery, Tmport Docuaments consigned in the name of BAHL, Accepted Thaft, Equitable Mortgage
Charge over Land & Buildings & Personal Guarantee of Mortgager's . These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 1 billion (2022: Rs. 600 million). The Islamic
Export Running Finance Facility limit is Rs. 900 M (2022: Rs. 800 million).

Duaring the year the company has availed loan Rs. Nill (2022: Rs.196.1 million) Export Financing Scheme Facility under a scheme by SBP having a tenor of six
months. The Pre-shipment borrowing is settled upon export remittances and 'is priced at SBP rate + 1% (i.e. ranging from 2% to 3%). The facility is secured against
Registered Hypothecation Charge over Stocks & Receivables, Lien over Export Documents, Registered Hypothecation charge over Plant & Machinery, Import
Documents consigned in the name of BAHL, Accepted Draft, Equitable Mortgage Charge over Land & Buildings & Personal Guarantee of Mortgager's.. These form
part of total credit facility of Rupees 200 million {2022: Rs. 200 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The Company filed CP No.D-6619 in the Sindh High Court on dated 31-10-2017 against the imposition of section 5A of income tax ordinance 2001 for the tax on

undistributed profit. The Hounarable Sindh High Court grant stay order and repondents have restrained for taking any action against the Company pursuant to
the impugned ammendments in Finance Act 2017, Therefore no provision for the tax on undistrbuted profit has been recorded in this linancial statement ended

June 30, 2023,

Guarantees

Bank guarantees issued in the ordinary course of business. 16,231,418 14,350,018

Commitments

Raw material 820 463,352 -

Plant and machinery 15,005,222 -

104,558,574 -

SALES - NET

Export 25.1 11,063,9558,481 10,249,142,911

Local 112,592,904 14,435,986

Local waste 3.814.985 7,602,061
11,180,370,370 10,271,180,958

Rebate & duty drawback 159,516,137 122,048 046

Commission on exports (15,042,123) (13,851,170)

Discount on exports (237,927,978) {141,291,647)
11,086,916,4068 10,238,086, 187

Exchange gain due to currency rate fluctuations relating to export sales amounting to Rs.525.39 million (2022: Rs.356.05 million) has been included in export sales.

GD
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2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
26 COST OF SALES
Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 7,582,635,066 §,119,506,719
Finished goods
Opening stock 399,571,930 225,507,527
Purchases 647,271,423 205,712,059
Closing stock (685,162,050) (399,571,930)
Cost of sales 7.944,316,369 8,151,154,374
261  Cost of goods manufactured
Raw material consumed 26.11 4,342 506,043 4,785,222 788
Purchase (semi finished goods) 358,987,247 516,170,142
Stores and spares consumed 26.1.2 132,492,675 77664478
Other manufacturing expenses 26,13 1,284,351 956 1,545,224,262
Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.1.4 882,565,760 717,003,272
Communication expenses 2,349 943 2,243,663
Conveyance 10,519,423 8,066,352
Utilities 196,479,833 193,747,930
Insurance 40,548,779 27464125
Repairs and maintenance 34,452,261 20,124,842
Oil and lubricants 734,489 224,209
Printing and stationery 587 644 2,571,154
Subscription, fees and taxes 49,731,701 39,869,835
Entertainment expenses 32,389,931 21,915,337
Vehicle running and maintenance 32,281,683 18,016,961
Gas infrastructure development cess - 37,363,171
Depreciation 41 116,269,046 101,213,430
Other expenses 2,868,253
7,517,249,014 8,116,973,683
Work in process
Opening stock 445,965,783 445,502,819
Closing stock (380,583,731) (445,969,783)
65,386,052 2,533,036
7,582,635,066 §,119,506,719
26.1.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock 645,288,150 427,722,818
Purchases - net 4,228 872,690 4,970,211,321
Cartage-in 27,543,062 32,576,299
4,901,703,902 5,430,510,438
Closing stock (559,197,259) (645,288,150)
4,342 506,643 4,785,222,288
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
26.1.2 Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock 77,853,375 50,934,963
Purchases - net 118,745,047 104,582,890
196,598,422 155,517 853
Closing stock (64,105,747) (77,853,375)
132,492,675 77,664,478
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26.1.4
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28

29

291
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30

Other manufacturing expenses

Fabric dveing and processing charges
Stitching charges

837,225,823
447,126,133

959,159,228
556,065,034

1,284,351,956

1,545,224,262

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.20,325,042/- (2022: Rs, 28 390,186/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits (gratuity),

DISTRIBUTION COST

Fxport development surcharge 25,574,497 23,291,917
Export freight 118,853,512 383,633,011
Clearing and forwarding 46,495,734 49,776,657
Marine msurance 7,214,885 7,715,134
Advertisement 638,925 1,292,673
Fair & exhibition 30,127 458 11,936,420
Buyer Entertainment 132,566 188,793
Travelling 65,451,141 35,070,395
Sales promotion expense 4,235,936 10,890
208,704,654 512,915,891
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Directors' remuneration 49,378,427 35,130,810
Stalf salaries and other benefits 28.1 209,543,864 196,563,225
Conveyance 297,630 399,452
Vehicle running and maintlenance 12,599,595 9,329,153
Subscription, fees and taxes 15,723,556 11,649,874
Utilities 3,944,726 5,429,905
Printing and stationery 1,527,231 1,486,091
Legal and professional charges 1,461,270 1,542,105
Repairs and maintenance 7,884,956 12,910.530
Communication expenses 16,473,936 10,974,597
Entertainment 10,601,590 7,719,935
Office expenses 122,860 650,798
Insurance 9,552,413 9,047,762
Advertisement 339,600 171,480
Allowance for ECL 9.2 5,932,112 14,564,671
Miscellaneous expenses 1,007,268 -
Depreciation 41 18,457,773 15,215,582
Amortization 303,992 337,769
365,248,099 333,124,798
Staff salaries and other bhenefits includes Rs.22,875,930/- (2022: Rs.17,806,388/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits (gratuity).
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' profit participation fund 20.2 135,795,726 62,368,101
Auditors' remuneration 281 1,308 308 1,746,725
Donation 292 38,073,478 3,744,000
Sindh Worker's welfare fund 8,290,258 7,315,120
183,557,860 75,173,946
Auditors’' remuneration
Annual audit fee 1,092,500 950,000
Half vearly review fee 155,898 141,725
Code of Corporate Governance review 55,000 55,000
Tax services T 520,000
Other services 95,000 80,000
1,398,398 1,746,725

These include donations made by the Company to the SIUT, Ayesha Chundrigar Foundation, Developments in Literacy and Roshan Pakistan Acedemy. None of

the directors, sponsor shareholders, key management personnel and their spouses had any interest in the donee.

OTHER INCOME

From financial assets

Profit on savings account

Profit on mutual funds investment

Exchange gain on FCY

From other than financial assets

Gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment

4.2

116,180,872 35,782,870
204,721,746 1,654,592
9,225,144 8,725
8,749,544 5,075,108
338,877,306 42,526,295
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FINANCE COST

Interest on WPPF 20.2 6,093,883 1,697,154

Mark-up on short term borrowing 40,207 060 13,204,574

Mark-up on long term borrowing 427,237 -

Bank charges 7,119,762 8,347 828

53,847,932 23,249,556

TAXATION

Provision / reversal for taxation

Current year 188,257,529 119,182,028

Prior Year Adjustment (323,505) {574,917)

Sindh sales tax 323 3,847,205 3,338,621
191,781,229 121,945,732

The provision for taxation has been made in these financial statements on the basis of section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these financial statements as the total income falls
under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance 20071,

Mo provision in these accounts has been made for deferred tax. A technical release i.e. TR-27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
prescribed that deferred tax accounting does not apply to those companies whose entire sales are covered under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, as
there will be no timing differences,

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
Sindh sales tax is non refundable tax.
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year Rupees 2,388,337 569 1,063,048,185
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year Numbers 17,000,000 17,000,000
Earning per share - basic Rupees 140,49 62.53
Diluted earnings per share
There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022,
REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2023 2022
CEO Directors Executives CEO Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration 10,091,179 39,287,248 78,662,341 6,332,928 28,797,882 57,190,106
Bonus . - 6,785,519 - - 4,765,842
Utilities 22,941 2,494,998 2,469,828 - 2,652,596 968,494
Medical expenses - 1,470,934 490,091 - 2,063,798 568,259
Fuel & maintenance - 4,474,615 7,517,360 - 4,233,733 3,619,774
Others - 30,665 - - 332,562 -

10,114,120 47,758,460 95,925,139 6,332,928 38,080,571 67,412,475
Number of persons 1 7 27 1 7 19

The Chief Executive and Directors are using personal cars but the fuel and maintenance paid by the company and Executives are provided with free nse of

Company's maintained car. Reimbursement of utility bills at Director & Executives residence as per Company policy.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise directors and key management personnel. Amounts due to related parties are shown in the relevant notes to the financial statements.
Transactions with related parties are disclosed below:

Nature of transaction Relationship 2023 2022
Salaries and other benefits Key management persannel 57,872,580 44413499

The company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered at arm’s length.
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2023
Rupees

2022
Rupees

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DNSCLOSURES

The company has exposures Lo the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

36.1  Credit risk
36.2  Liquidity risk
36.3  Market risk

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of company's risk management framework. The board is also responsible for

developing and monitoring the company's risk management policies,

36.1  Credit risk
36.1.1 Exposure to credil risk
Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Carrying
amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. Credit risk of the Company arises from deposits with banks, trade debts, loans and
advances and other receivables. The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into aceount their financial position,past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of credit limils is
regularly monitored.
The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and available external credit rabings.
Carrying values of financial assets exposed Lo credit risk and which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Long term loans and advances 5 19,250,419 20,486,758
Long term deposits b 44,271,116 35,321,400
Trade debts 9 2,246,392.773 1,546,957,008
Loans and advances 10 115,391,739 61,384,555
Trade deposits and shorl lerm prepaviments 11 30,235,574 23,495,653
Other receivables 12 150,613,511 64,796,301
Short term Investment 14 1,352,260,073 228,413,351
Cash and bank balances 15 450,403,190 GR3,671,503
4,388,818 394 2 644,566,529
36.1.2  The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by geographical region is as follows,
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Domestic 9 6,382,377 8,113,026
Export 9 2,260,569,112 1,553,500,585
Allowanee for ECL (20,558,715) (14,626,603
2,246,392, 774 1,546,957 008
The majority of export debtors of the company are situated in Asia, Europe, Africa and North America.
36.1.3  The aging of trade debtors at the balance sheet is as follows:
Gross debtors
2023 2022
Rupees
MNot past due 2,179,465,030 1,061,302,637
Past due 0 - 30 days = 263,055,289
Past due 31 - 40 days 30,814,196 | 182,608 469
FPast due 91 days - 1 year 5,717,957 19,959,826
More than one year 501,954,304 26,574,364
2.266,951,.489 1,553.500,585
Allowance for ECL (20,558,715) (14,626,603)
2,246,392,774 1,538,5873,452
36.14  Credit quality of counter parties is assessed based on historical default rates. All receivables past due are considered good, The management belicves that
allowance for impairment of receivables past due is nol necessary, as these comprise amounts due from old customers, which have been re-negotiated from lime
to Hme and are also considered good.
2
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
362  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, The company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as posaible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments and excluding the impact of netling agreements.

2023
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve Two ta five More than
Amount Cash flows or less months years five years
Rupees
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Non - derivative
Financial liabilities

Long term loan 10,247,077 10,247,077 3 1,138,564 9,108,513
Trade and other payables 2,233,290,570 2,233,290,570 2,233,290,570 - - -
Accrued markup 102,377 102,377 102,377
Short term borrowing - - -
2,243,640,024 2,243,640,024 2,233,392,947 1,138,564 9,108,513
2022
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve Twao to five More than
Amount Cash flows or less maonths years five years
Rupees
Non - derivative
Financial liabilities
Lang term loan 11,101,000 11,101,000 - 853,923 10,247,077 -
Trade and other payables 1,454,058,992 1,454,058,992 1,454,058,992 = < -
Accrued markup 5,933,851 5,933,851 5,933,851
Short term borrowing 791,010,577 791,010,577 791,010,577 = 2 -
2,262,104,420 2,262,104,420 2,251,003,420 453,923 10,247,077
36.2.1 'The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial labilities have been determined on the basis of mark up rates effective as at June 30, The rates of mark
up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements,
363  Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due to a change
i credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the market.
The company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.
36.3.1 Currency risk
Exposure to currency risk
The company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, borrowing and impert of raw material and stores that are denominated in a currency other than the
respective functional currency of the company, primarily in US Dellar and Euro. The eurrencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated is US
Dollar and Euro. The company's expaosure to forelgn currency risk is as follows:
US Dollar Euri GBP Rupees
Trade debts 2023 7,887,541 - 2,260,569,112
Trade debts 2022 7,479,725 - 65,850 1,553,500,585
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year.
Average rates Reporting date rates
2023 2022 2023 2022
LS Dallar to Rupee 246,89 182.84 286.60 20717
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Sensitivity analysis
5% strengthening of Pak Rupee against the following currencies at June 30, would have increased [ (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amount shown
below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 3% weakening of Pak Rupee against the above currencies at
perinds ends would have had the equal but opposites effect on the above currencies to the amount shown below, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.
US Dollar (113,028 456) (77,478,727)
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and liabilities of the company.
36.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of
the interest rate exposures arises from short and long term borrowings from bank and term deposits and deposits in PLS saving accounts with banks, At the

halance sheet date the interest rate profile of the company's interest bearing financial imstrument is as follows.

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 4,365,644,750 3,779,341,749
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 268,788,749 639,355,467
Financial habilitics 2,233,290,570 1,454,058,992
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities al fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates al the
reporting date would nat affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant, The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2023,

Profit and loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease increase decrease
Rupees
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments 2023 22,332,906 (22,332,906) - -
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rale instruments 2022 14,540,590 (14,540,590) - -

36.3.3 Other Price Risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The company is not exposed to commadity price risk as it does not hold financial
instruments based commodity prices.

36.4  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of all financial instruments reflected in the financial statements approximate to their fair values, Fair value is determined on the basis of
objective evidence at each reporting date,
365  Off balance sheet items

Bank guarantees issued in ordinary course of business 16,231 418 14,350,018

36.6  The effective rate of interest / mark up for the monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective notes to the financial statements,

023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Note

37 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company's prime object when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to contine as a going concern in order to provide adequate returns for shareholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total capital
employed. Borrowings represent long term financing, long term financing from directors and others and short term barrowings. Total capital employed includes total
equity as shown in the balance sheet plus borrowings.

Tatal equity Rupees 7.560,745472 5391, 113,873
Tatal barrowing Rupees 10,247,077 802,111,577
Total capital employed Rupees 7,570,992,549 6,193,225450
Gearing ratio Percentage 0.14% 1295%

38 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES:

Anumber of the Company's accounting policies and disclosure require the the measurement of fair values,for both financial,if any and non-financial assets and financial
liabilities. The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their fair values.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and uses abservable market data

as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:




TOWELLERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

39

40

41

43

-Level 1:Quoted prices{unadijusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Laibility,either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derivedfrom prices).
-Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

It the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

There were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned above. The respective basis of valuation at fair values are disclosed in notes to the account
wherever applicable.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
The plant capacity are indeterminable due to multi product plants involving varying processes of manufacturing and run length of order lots.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectively are as follows:

2023 2022
Total number of employees as at June 30-Factory 1617 1771
Total number of employees as at June 30-Head Office 119 121
Total 1736 1892
Average number of employees during the year-Factory 1694 1426
Average number of emplovees during the year-Head Office 120 118
Total 1814 1544

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors in their meeting held on September 27, 2023 have recommended and approved an annual cash dividend of PKR
10.00 per share in respect of year ended June 30, 2023 (June 30, 2022: PKR 10.00 per share). The financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of the above annual dividend which will be accounted for in the period in which it
is approved.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors of the company on September 27, 2023

’

/Ammm& A @
Mehreen Obaid Agha Sana Bilal Adnan Moosaji

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Karachi,
September 27, 2023
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PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY
SHAREHOLDERS AS ON JUNE 30, 2023

AS PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Number of SHARE HOLDINGS TOTAL SHARES PERCENTAGE
SHAREHOLDERS From To HELD
616 1 100 5857 0.0345
101 101 500 33729 0.1984
43 501 1000 37218 0.2189
55 1001 5000 151730 0.8925
16 5001 10000 135000 0.7941
5 10001 15000 64000 0.3765
3 15001 20000 49000 0.2882
1 20001 25000 22400 0.1318
1 25001 30000 26000 0.1529
1 30001 35000 31500 0.1853
2 35001 40000 76400 0.4494
1 50001 55000 50500 0.2971
1 85001 90000 88500 0.5206
1 100001 105000 100651 0.5921
1 125001 130000 129759 0.7633
1 175001 180000 180000 1.0588
1 195001 200000 200000 1.1765
1 420001 425000 425000 2.5000
2 465001 470000 937648 5.5156
1 525001 530000 526000 3.0941
3 2455001 2460000 7379247 43.4073
1 2465001 2470000 2467043 14.5120
1 3880001 3885000 3882818 22.8401
859 17000000 100.0000

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2023

CATEGORIES OF NUMBER OF SHARES PERCENTAGE
SHARE HOLDERS SHARE HOLDERS  HELD OF HOLDING
1 GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 826 16025080 94.2652
2 GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 19 144460 0.8498
3 INSURANCE COMPANIES 2 655759 3.8574
4 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES 8 80601 0.4741
5  MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 2 89100 0.5241
6  OTHERS 2 5000 0.0294
COMPANY TOTAL 859 17000000 100.0000
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2023

Categories of Sharreholders No. of Shares Held Percentage
Share holders

DIRECTORS, CEO & SPONSORS
Ms. Mahjabeen Obaid 1 2,467,043 14.51
Ms. Mehreen Obaid Agha 1 2,459,748 14.47
Ms. Sana Bilal 1 2,459,748 14.47
Ms. Hadeel Obaid 1 2,459,751 14.47
Mr. Zeeshan K. Sattar 1 468,448 2.76
Muhammad Sarfraz 1 500 0.02
Niaz Muhammad 1 100 0.00
Humza Shaikh Obaid 1 3,983,469 23.43
INSURANCE COMPANY
National Insurance Company Ltd 1 526,000 3.09
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Ltd 1 129,759 0.76
OTHERS COMPANIES
Intermarket Securities Limited 1 4,000 0.02
Al-Ameen Islamic Ret.Sav. Fund-Equity Sub Fund 1 50,500 0.30
UBL Retirement Savings Fund-Equity Fund 1 38,600 0.23
Alpha Beta Core Solutions (Private) Limited 1 4.000 0.02
Y.S. Securities & Services Pvt Ltd 1 1,000 0.01
Burma QOil Mills Ltd 3 2,000 0.01
M. Munir M. Ahmed Khanani Securities Lid 1 26,000 0.15
NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT 1 1 0.00
Trustee Aloo & Minocher Dinshaw Charitable Trust 1l 1,000 0.01
MRA Securities Limited - MF 1 37,800 0.22
Spectrum Securities Limited - MF 1 7,300 0.04
Trust Securities & Brokerage Limited - MF 1 2,500 0.01
Iftikhar Corporation 1 10,000 0.06
Chenab Textile Corporation 1 15,800 0.09
Ranjha Linen 1 10,000 0.06
Fine Fabrico 1 15,000 0.09
GENERAL PUBLIC
Local 812 1,670,473 9.83
Foreign 19 144,460 0.83
Others 2 5,000 0.03
Total 859 17,000,000 100.00

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING RIGHTS IN THE LISTED COMPANY

Mahjabeen Obaid 2,467,043
Mehreen Obaid Agha 2,459,748
Sana Bilal 2,459,748
Hadeel Obaid 2,459,751
Humza Shaikh Obaid 3,983,469
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company assumes its role as contributory towards various areas of the social well being of the people amongst whom
the Company exists. It recognizes its responsibility in creating and sustaining a better and healthy society which creates
an impact on better business atmosphere as well.

The Company not only continued to distribute ration packets to the needy people within and outside the Company, it
keeps its focus on other areas such as health, mental health, education, animal welfare and environment. During the year
the Company committed a major contribution in purchasing of anesthesia equipment for the Sindh Institute of Urology
and Transplantation (SIUT) which was disbursed subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Company supports various institutes which are contributing in health, education and food security of the masses
such as Developments in Literacy, Roshan Pakistan Academy, Ayesha Chundrigar Foundation, etc. The Company also
supports its deserving employees in providing education to their children.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company is determined in its commitment to safeguard a healthy environment for all, by diligently adhering to
environmental standards at our production facilities. Our dedication to responsible business practices extends throughout
our value chain. Also, we are dedicated to fostering a safe and secure work environment for our associates. We prioritize
sustainability reducing our carbon footprint and implementing initiative that conserve water and energy.

The Company has made major investments in modern dyeing and processing machines which besides increasing the
production capacity and efficiency are helping in significantly reducing the water and power consumption, thus reducing
carbon emissions and resulting in precious water savings.

The company has hired a specialist mental therapist to assess, recover and protect mental health of its staff and workers.
The Company also conducts and participate in blood donation drives at regular intervals. The Company has covered its
entire staff under medical insurance policy for their regular and sudden medical needs.

The Company properly maintains and regularly upgrade the fire fighting systems throughout its manufacturing facilities
and offices, conducts regular fire drills and performs fumigation periodically. We have invested in new boiler and have
ensured its regular maintenance to its standards to protect the workers and staff to prevent accidents.

Textile manufacturing particularly dying and printing processes can cause significant harm to the environment, if adequate
measures are not taken to mitigate hazardous effect of textile process. The company is deeply concerned and has
established effluent treatment plant at its dying, printing and garments manufacturing facilities. Waste water treatment
plant at our manufacturing facility is designed and operated to meet and exceed environmental standard, securing the
health of our employees and local eco system

The Company has successfully installed solar power generation facilities at most of its premises. Besides reducing power
costs, the investments are helping us in reduced consumption of thermal electricity being produced by Karachi Electric
and hence producing clean and green energy.
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HUMAN RESOURCE

Our employees are our greatest assets and the key strength of our business. Towellers firmly believe in nurturing, investing
in and promoting its employees. The management of the company is committed to excellence and has a clear vision that
human resources and strong leader ship practice are important enablers of high productivity and sustainable competitive
advantage of our company. Therefore, the management of the company gives much importance to the optimal use of
human resources by way of trainings and proper guidance for the employees.

The Company pays special attention on the training of its human capital. During the year, the Company engaged professional
trainers under the umbrella of Towel Manufacturing Association for Advance Merchandizing Program for its staff which
is still on going. The Company will continue to pursue more such and other professional trainings to groom and train its
human capital. Earlier, the Company’s Directors also undertook Directors’ training program to keep the Board of Directors
well versed with the rules and regulations of Corporate Governance and prepare themselves for relevant legal requirements
and challenges.

WISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The company is committed to create an atmosphere ensuring accountability and integrity and its conduct. A whistleblowing
policy has been in placed as part of company’s efforts to provide a mechanism for raising alert against any wrongdoing
malpractice or impropriety. This is intended to further improve governance and service quality. The policy set out the
procedures for lodging of concern by the employees, handling of concern by the organization, reporting requirement,
and protection of whistleblower and periodic monitoring of the policy. The employees are encouraged to use the guidance
provided by the program.

INSIDER TRADING

Company has taken definitive steps in ensuring that all employees, officers, members of the Board and all such relevant
persons follow strict guidelines while trading in the shares of the company. No employee or his/her spouse will transact
in the shares of the company during the close period prior to the announcement of financial results. Employees categorize
as executive according to the requirement of code of corporate governance should also inform the management immediately
about any transaction perform by them and their spouse other than during the close period.

POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING OF RECORDS

Company policy for safety of records extend beyond the regulatory requirements, and falls in the ambit of a comprehensively
formulated business continuity planning which provide for preservation of company record of significant or permanent
value for periods exceeding the legal stipulated timeframe in an efficient, secure and easy to retrieve manner.
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Standard Request Form
Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts

The Company Secretary
Towellers Limited

WSA, 30-31, Block-1
F.B. Area, Karachi.

Subject: Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email/CD/USB/DVD or Other

Pursuant to the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 787(1)/2014
dated September 8, 2014 and SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 that have allowed the companies to circulate
its Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. Annual Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Accounts, Statements of Comprehensive
Income, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the Financial Statements, Auditor’s and Director’s Report) to its members

through Email/CD/DVD/USB/ or any other Electronic Media at their registered Addresses.

Shareholders who wish to receive the hardcopy of Financial Statements shall have to fill the below form and send
us to Company address,

I/We hereby consent Option 1 or Option 2 to the above said SROs for Audited Financial Statements and Notice of
General Meeting(s) delivered to me hard form instead Email/CD/DVD/USB or any others Electronic Media.

Option 1 — Via Email

Name of the Member/ Shareholders :

CNIC /SNIC # :

Folio / CDC Account Number :

Valid Email Address:

(to receive Financial Statements alongwith
Notice of General Meeting(s) Instead of
hard copy, CD/DVD/USB.)

Option 2 — Hard Copy

Name of the Member/ Shareholders :

CNIC /SNIC #:

Folio / CDC Account Number :

Mailing Address:

{on which | wish receive Financial
Statements alongwith Notice of
General Meeting(s) instead of
Email/CD/DVD/USB and any other
Electronic Media.)

I/We hereby confirm that the above mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, 1/we will
immediately intimate to the Company’s Share Registrar/Company. I/we further confirm that the transmission of
Company’s Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting(s) through my/our above address
would be taken as compliance with the Companies Act, 2017.

Shareholder’s signature
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TOWELLERS LIMITED POSTAL BALLOT PAPER

In person and virtual meeting to be held on Thursday, October 26, 2023 at 3:30 pm

at W.S.A. 30-31, Block No 1. F.B. Area Karachi Phone: +92 21 6323500-600 Website: www.towellers.com

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled-in ballot paper may be sent:farhan@towellers.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Number of shares held and folio number / CDC Account #

CNI

(Copy to be attached)

C No./Passport No (in case of foreigner)

Additional Information and enclosures
(In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and
Federal Government)

1/ we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the below resolution(s) through postal ballot by conveying my/our assent
or dissent the following resolution by placing tick (v') mark in the appropriate box below:

Sr. Nature and Description of Resolutions No. of ordinary I/We assent to I/We dissent to
No. shares for the Resolutions | the Resolutions
which votes cast (FOR) (AGAINST)
01 Agenda No: 05

To approve the circulation of the annual financial
statements to the members through QR enabled
code and weblink by passing an ordinary
resolution proposed in the statement of material
facts.

o

o

~3

Duly filled& signed original postal ballot should be sent to the chairman of the Company or a scanned copy of the
original postal ballot to be emailed at farhan@towellers.com.

Copy of CNIC/ Passport (in case of a foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

Postal ballot forms should reach the chairman of the meeting on or before October 25t 2023, during working hours.
Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC/ Passport (In case of a foreigner).

Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, form, mutilated, overwritten ballot paper will be rejected.

In case of representative of body corporate and corporation, postal ballot insist he accompanied with copy of CNIC of
authorized person, along with a duly attested copy of Board Resolution, Power of Attorney, or Authorization Letter in
accordance with Section(s) 138 or 139 of the Companies Act, 2017, as applicable, unless these have already been
submitted along with the Proxy Form. In case of foreign body corporate etc., all documents must be attested by the
Counsel General of Pakistan having jurisdiction over the member.

Ballot paper has also been placed on the website of the Company www.towellers.com Members may download the
ballot paper from the website or use an original / photocopy published in newspapers.

Signature of sharecholder




TOWELLERS LIMITED

INVESTORS' EDUCATION
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TOWELLERS LIMITED

Investor Relations

Registered Office
Towellers House
WSA, 30-31,

F.B. Area

Karachi

Share Registrar

THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited

Plot No 32-C,

Jami Commercial Street -2,

DHA, Phase- VII, Karachi-75500.
UAN-+92(021) 111-000-322

Email: sfc@thk.com.pk Web : www.thk.com.pk

Share transfers, dividend and all other Investor related matters are attended to and
processed by Company’s Share Registrar.

Investor Relations Contact Person

M. Farhan Adil

Email: farhan@towellers.com

Financial Calendar

The Company follows the period of July 1 to June 30 as the Financial Year.

For the Financial Year 2022-2023, financial results will be announced as per the
following tentative schedule:

1% Quarter ending September 30, 2022 Last week of October 2022
2"d Quarter ending December 31, 2022 Last week of February 2023
37 Quarter ending March 31, 2023 Last week of April 2023

4™ Quarter ending June 30, 2023 Last weck of September 2023
Listing

Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Stock Code

The stock code for trading in ordinary shares of the Company at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange is TOWL.

Statutory Compliance

The Company is in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2017, as
well as circulars/mandates issued thereunder, the Regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Listing Rules of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday October 26, 2023
at 3:30 p.m. at Towellers House WSA 30-31, Black-1 F.B. Area Karachi.

Book Closure
Share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 19, 2023 to
October 26, 2023 (both days inclusive).

Web Presence

Updated information regarding the Company can be accessed at its website
www.towellers.com. The website contains the latest financial information of the
Company together with the Company’s profile.
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TOWELLERS LIMITED

Form of Proxy

50t Annual General Meeting

I/We
of
Being member(s) of Towellers Limited holding
Ordinary shares hereby appoint
of or failing him / her
of who is / are also member(s) of Towellers Limited as my/our proxy in
my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the fifty Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on October 26, 2023, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2023
Signed by the said
In the presence of 1.

Folio / CDC Account No. Signature

This signature should
agree  with the
specimen registered

with the Company.

Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
WSA, 30, 31 Block #-1, F.B. Area, Karachi, not less than 48 hours befare the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation may
appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a
member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC / SNIC
(Computerized National Identity Card / Smart National Identity Card) numbers shall be mentioned on
the form.

ii) Attested copies of CNIC / SNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC / SNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.
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